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Continuation of Block 14 of the SF30, Amendment of Solicitation 

The purpose of Amendment 2 is to: 

1. Answer questions submitted by Industry and to make associated changes to the 

RFP as documented in the attached change log. 

2. Update Section H.8.  

3. Update Section L to revise proposal due date, change documents that count 

toward the page limitations for the Past Performance Volume, and clarify the 

number and types of references that the Offeror should provide. 

4. Update Section L Table to change the number of copies of Volume V - Model 

Contract required. 

5. Update Section L, Attachment L-1, Past Performance Questionnaire to reflect the 

new due date. 

6. Make a minor revision to Section L, Attachment L-2, Sample Task Order A 

Sustainability at JSC 

7. Revision to Section L.16.8 Table to include submission of Section K, 

Representations, Certifications and Other Statements of Offerors. 

Replacement pages for the aforementioned changes are attached. 
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Questions and Answers 
JSC Environmental Services (JES) Contract 
Request for Proposal (RFP) NNJ12443042R 

 

Question # 1:  There were many slides presented during the Preproposal 
Conference meeting, too many to copy.  Can we obtain a copy of 
the slides to help us prepare our proposal? 

Response: Yes, the presentation slides were posted on October 30, 2012, on 
the JES Procurement website at:  
http://procurement.jsc.nasa.gov/jes/   

 

Question # 2: Will the attendee list be made available?  If so, when and where? 

Response: Yes, the interested parties list has been updated to reflect 
attendees. It is available on the JES Procurement website. 

 

Question # 3: Would you please provide the script used to read from during the 
site tour as information only (understanding that requirements of 
the RFP take precedence)? 

Response: No, the tour script will not be provided.  The information provided 
during the tour is available through documents posted in the 
Technical Reference Library; Section C, Attachment A, Description 
of Facilities;  Section J, Attachment J-4, Workload Data; and within 
the Statement of Work.   

 

Question # 4:  Will the incumbent be bidding on this RFP? Is the incumbent 
allowed to bid of this RFP? 

Response:  This procurement is open to any eligible small business.  The 
Government cannot predict whether any company will or will not 
submit a proposal. 

 

Question # 5:   How long has the incumbent held the current contract? 

http://procurement.jsc.nasa.gov/jes/
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Response: The current contract was awarded to Earth Resources Technology, 
Inc., with a start date of March 1, 2008. 

 

Question # 6: The approximate value of the prior (5) five year base contract was 
$14.5M. Does this value include the IDIQ portion of the work? Does 
this value include the FFP cost of contract phase-in? Could you 
please provide a breakdown of the total contract value between: 
Phase-In, Base CPIF Contract and IDIQ Cost Reimbursable 
Contract? 

Response: The current environmental contract is Cost Plus Award Fee (CPAF) 
not CPIF.  At time of award Phase-In was $27,140, the total of base 
period and options was $11,661,666, and maximum IDIQ value 
was $2,500,000. The $14.5M is all inclusive 

 

Question # 7: Does the Collective Bargaining Agreement apply to any of the CSC 
emergency response personnel and/or positions applied to this 
contract? 

(Related Question) Are any incumbent employees currently subject 
to any union or collective bargaining agreements? If yes, please 
indicate which positions. 

(Related Question) Are any incumbent employee positions currently 
subject to Davis-Bacon or SCA requirements? If yes, please 
indicate which positions. 

(Related Question) Does NASA contemplate any SCA positions or 
collective bargaining positions to be created as a result of this 
contract award? If yes, please indicate the relevant SCA wage 
category. 

 (Related Question) Can the Government provide the appropriate 
Wage Determination Schedule or the version to be used? 

Response: Yes: Chief Environmental Operator, Environmental Operator, 

Laborer, and Heavy Truck Driver positions (Labor Categories under 

the current Facilities Support Service Contract) are currently 

subject to SCA requirements and Collective Bargaining 

Agreements. However, the requirements performed by those 
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covered positions are not anticipated to be performed by 

SCA/Davis-Bacon/CBA covered positions.  Therefore, a 

Department of Labor (DOL) Wage Determination (WD) is not 

required for this procurement as the Service Contract Act (SCA) 

and Davis-Bacon Act are not triggered by this procurement.  

Therefore, there are no DOL WDs or Collection Bargaining 

Agreements (CBA) provided in Section J.  Offerors are reminded 

that compliance with the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) – in 

absence of a DOL WD – is mandatory per FAR 22.1002-2. 

 

Question # 8: Would the Government consider extending the due date 
considering the business disruptions caused by Hurricane 
(superstorm) Sandy? 

 (Related Question) Will the Government be filing a formal 
Modification to the Solicitation to reflect the below update to the 
Milestones Schedule posted on 11/7/12, which extends the 
Proposal Due Date? It is still formally listed as 11/29/12. “11/7/12 
Updated the Milestone Schedule to reflect an extension for the 
Proposals Due date due to Hurricane Sandy.” 

 (Related Question) On Nov 7, an extension to the proposal due 
date was posted to the milestone schedule. Modification 8 still has 
the original due date. Will there be a modification forthcoming that 
changes the proposal delivery date? 

 (Related Question) REF: Section L.11 Proposal Marking and 
Delivery, and Standard Form 33 

DISCUSSION: The deadline for submitting proposals is November 
29, 2012, by 1:30pm Central Standard Time, a total of 35 days from 
the final RFP’s release.  The response requirements are quite 
extensive and require significant resources for a Small Business to 
comply with.  In addition, the requirement to have government 
clients respond in a timely manner to the Past Performance 
Questionnaires in light of the week of the Thanksgiving holiday 
immediately preceding the current submission deadline poses yet 
another significant challenge to a complete and timely submission.  
The recent weather events on the East Coast have also disrupted a 
number of government clients’ schedules.  Finally, contract 
performance is not expected to commence until July 2013, over 
seven months from the current submission deadline. 
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QUESTION: Will the government please consider extending the 
proposal submission deadline to December 14, 2012, at a 
minimum? 

Response: The SLPT has considered the impact of extending the proposal 
deadline to the overall procurement schedule and will extend the 
due date for submitting proposals to December 6, 2012 at 1:30 pm 
local time. An Amendment to the Solicitation will be posted to 
reflect this change. 

 

Question # 9: Please verify the font size requirements for tables.  Would the 
government consider a smaller font, such as 10 pt Arial Narrow? 

Response: No, as stated in Section L.16.2 Proposal Arrangement, Page 
Limitations, Copies, and Due Dates, only Arial 12 point non-
compressed font may be used in tables. 

 

Question # 10: Please verify the font size requirements for graphics.  Would the 
government consider a smaller font, such as 10 pt Arial Narrow? 

Response: No, as stated in Section L.16.2 Proposal Arrangement, Page 
Limitations, Copies, and Due Dates, only Arial 12 point non-
compressed font may be used in in tables, charts, graphs, plans, 
figures, diagrams and schematics used to depict organizations, 
systems, layout, and implementation schedules or other proposal 
information that will be used to demonstrate your approach or to be 
included for evaluation purposes.  This does not include items such 
as company logos or similar items that do not contain proposal 
information. 

 

Question # 11:   In the labor category descriptions provided in Attachment J-4, some 
categories have asterisks against the educational requirements, 
indicating flexibility in substituting a combination of post-secondary 
education and experience or other training for a formally awarded 
degree.  Is the same flexibility extended to other non-key personnel 
labor categories or are the educational requirements rigidly defined 
other than for the asterisked labor categories? 
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Response: No, for the labor categories without an asterisk, there is no flexibility 
with regard to the educational requirements stated in Attachment J-
3, Standard Labor Categories. 

 

Question # 12: Where can the OSHA Voluntary Protection Program (VPP) 
Guidelines be found? 

Response: JSC’s internal requirements for implementing our VPP are 
contained within JPR 1700.1, JSC Safety and Health Handbook 
which is included in the JES Technical Reference Library and may 
be accessed from the JES Procurement website at: 
http://procurement.jsc.nasa.gov/jes/.  The Occupational Safety and 
Health Administration (OSHA) provides information about their VPP 
requirements at: http://www.osha.gov/dcsp/vpp/index.html. 

 

Question # 13: The information in Table L-1 (proposed volumes, page limitations, 
proposal copies, and due dates) does not exactly follow the 
headings and order of the content required as outlined in Section 
L.16.4.  Does table L-1 take precedence or Section L.16.4? 

Response: The information in Section L.16.4 is correct and Table L-1 has been 
amended to correct this discrepancy.     

 

Question # 14: On page L-14 the sentence starting “As part of your technical 
implementation narrative…” is followed by the statement:  
“Resources and basis of estimate are not required for these WBS’s 
unless your approach requires dedicated resources that can be 
attributed to the effort.”  Please confirm a) that the pronoun “these” 
refers to C.2.4 and C.2.5 – and clarify under what circumstances 
resources and basis of estimate would be required. 

Response: Yes, “these” refers to C.2.4 Records Management and C.2.5 
Deliverables Requirements. Only in the event that an Offeror 
proposes dedicated staff or other resources for these requirements 
would resources and basis of estimate be required in the narrative. 

 

http://procurement.jsc.nasa.gov/jes/
http://www.osha.gov/dcsp/vpp/index.html
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Question # 15: Will the contractor awarded this contract have access to incumbent 
personnel for training during the phase-in period?  Will this have to 
occur during evenings and weekends, or will there be access 
during normal work hours (7-5)? 

Response: Yes. The incumbent contractor is obligated to negotiate in good 
faith and conduct phase-out activities with the incoming contractor.  
This includes job-specific training, such as equipment specific or 
database specific training, and this can occur during normal work 
hours.  This does not include certified training, such as 
HAZWOPER or RCRA training classes, for which the incoming 
contractor is responsible. Please reference section F.6, Phase-In 
and Close-Out, and clause FAR 52.237-3, Continuity of Services 
(Clauses substantially the same are included in the existing 
contract).   

Question # 16: Attachment L-2, Sample Task Order A Sustainability at JSC 
references Section J, DRD EN-TO-1.  This Data Requirements 
Description does not appear in Section J of the solicitation.  Can 
you please provide a copy of Section J, DRD EN-TO-1? 

Response: This information has been moved to the end of Attachment L-2, 
Sample Task Order A, page L-58.  The RFP (Attachment L-2, 
Sample Task Order A) has been amended to remove references to 
DRD EN-TO-1. 

 

Question # 17: REF: L.16.2 Proposal Arrangement, Page Limitations, Copies, and 
Due Dates, Table L-1 Proposal Volumes, Page Limitations, 
Proposal Copies, and Due Dates, Section C.4.9 Information 
Architecture (IA), page C-29; Attachment L-3-7 TO-RFP-07 
Integration, Subtask 4.5 Information Architecture (IA), page L-3-84 

 
DISCUSSION: The page limitation for Volume I (55 pages) is not 
adequate to fully address all SOW and Task Orders requirements 
in a manner that ensures compliance with Section L instructions, 
and the Management and Staffing and Phase-in Plans. 

QUESTION: Would the government please increase the Volume I 
page limit to 85 pages? 

Response:  No, the Government considers 55 pages adequate. 
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Question # 18: What are the assumptions used to define the training budget in 
Table L.4 on page L-18? 

Response:  The Government developed the estimate based on the anticipated 
number of WYEs, annual anticipated training events, and types of 
certifications that might be needed to implement the statement of 
work.  However, Offerors should use their own assumptions based 
on their specific management and technical approach to develop a 
proposed cost for this item. 

 

Question # 19: Section L.16.4(d) Government Resources Estimate does not 
include direction to offerors.  Is this section for informational 
purposes only or does the government wish the offerors to respond 
or comment on Section L.16.4(d) in Volume I:  Technical 
Acceptability Proposal? 

Response: The Government Resources Estimate is included in Section L as 
information to assist Offerors in developing their proposal.  Offerors 
shall prepare their own estimates that support their unique 
proposed management and technical approaches and shall provide 
supporting rationale in narrative form.  The Government does not 
require a response or comment on the GRE in the Offeror’s 
proposal. 

 

Question # 20: Section L.16.4, page L-15: Please advise whether the proposed 
amounts for ISW includes the cost of waste pickup in addition to 
waste transportation and waste disposal? 

Response: The amounts shown are for Industrial Solid Waste (ISW) 
transportation and Treatment, Storage, Disposal and Recycling 
Facilities (TSDRF) disposal services attributed to the base contract 
only, and do not include the cost of on-site waste pickup. 

 

Question # 21: There are a number of new sections within the RFP not currently 
being performed by the incumbent contractor.  Specifically: ISW 
Removal/Remediation as described within Section C Statement of 
Work. Were these costs considered when developing the GRE? 



NNJ12443042R 
Amendment 2 

Page 10 
 

 

Response:  Yes. Many types of IDIQ work are included, but not broken out, in 
the Best Estimated Quantity portion of the IDIQ Government 
Resources Estimate (GRE).  

 

Question # 22: There are a number of new sections within the RFP not currently 
being performed by the incumbent contractor.  Specifically: 
Maintenance and Work Order System and Administration as 
described within section C.2.8 Were these costs considered when 
developing the GRE? Does NASA procurement envision this 
process to be a manual (paper-based) system or an electronic 
online submission? If electronic, will NASA consider the cost of 
developing or purchasing applicable software as a direct cost of the 
Base Contract? 

Response: The costs for a work control process were included in the GRE.  
The JES SOW does not require a “Maintenance and Work Order 
System and Administration”.  It requires a work control process that 
can receive, categorize, schedule, and track [JES] work requests.  
It is anticipated that requests for work would come to the Contractor 
via phone or email and that these records can be managed in a MS 
Excel spread sheet. As this is a cost reimbursable contract, all 
allowable, allocable, and reasonable costs, in accordance with FAR 
31, incurred in the performance of this contract may be considered 
direct costs under this contract. 

 

Question # 23: There are a number of new sections within the RFP not currently 
being performed by the incumbent contractor.  Specifically: 
Customer Service Surveys and related administration as described 
within section C.3.1. Were these costs considered when developing 
the GRE? Does NASA procurement envision this process to be a 
manual (paper-based) system or an electronic online submission? 
If electronic, will NASA consider the cost of developing or 
purchasing applicable software as a direct cost of the Base 
Contract? 

Response: Yes, the cost of providing surveys is included in the GRE. Offerors 
are referred to Section J-8, Attachment C, Service Quality Metric 
Questionnaire.  It is anticipated that the Contractor will distribute 
this form, in either hard copy or electronic, to all JES customers 
after assistance or services has been provided. As this is a cost 
reimbursable contract, all allowable, allocable, and reasonable 
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costs, in accordance with FAR 31, incurred in the performance of 
this contract may be considered direct costs under this contract. 

 

Question # 24: Section C.3.1.3 indicates that the contractor is responsible for 
producing marketing materials and other electronic media to 
promote various environmental awareness activities. Could you 
provide the average cost of the efforts for the preceding 3 fiscal 
years? Are the costs of these activities included within the GRE? 

Response: JSC has a graphics department to assist with development of 
marketing materials and a print shop on site. The majority of 
marketing and educational materials have been produced on site, 
with the Contractor providing the technical information, and the 
graphics department providing professional graphics and layout 
services as needed.  Occasionally, the Contractor may procure 
items from outside sources (print shops, such as for signs) under 
the base contract but these costs are minimal therefore, they 
cannot be broken out. These activities were considered in the 
development of the GRE. 

 

Question # 25: Are the amounts listed in Section L, Page L-15 for “ISW 
Transportation and TSDRF disposal services” included in the 
“Subcontracts” line item in table L-4 on Page L-18? 

Response: Yes. 

 

Question # 26: There are a number of new sections within the RFP not currently 
being performed by the incumbent contractor.  Specifically: 
Managing the <90-day ISW waste management units. Were these 
costs considered when developing the GRE? 

 (Related Question) There are a number of new sections within the 
RFP not currently being performed by the incumbent 
contractor.  Specifically: Conducting inspections required by the 
SPCC and SWPPP plans. Were these costs considered when 
developing the GRE? 

 (Related Question) There are a number of new sections within the 
RFP not currently being performed by the incumbent 
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contractor.  Specifically: Managing storm water within containment 
structures and draining devices. Were these costs considered when 
developing the GRE? 

 (Related Question) There are a number of new sections within the 
RFP not currently being performed by the incumbent 
contractor.  Specifically: Operating the MEMTEK. Were these costs 
considered when developing the GRE? 

  (Related Question) There are a number of new sections within the 
RFP not currently being performed by the incumbent 
contractor.  Specifically: Spill Response and clean up. Were these 
costs considered when developing the GRE? 

Response: Yes, all requirements of the JES SOW were included in the GRE. 

 

Question # 27: Can you elaborate upon the source of the Subcontracts (Waste 
Disposal and Transportation) and Regulatory Fees costs that 
appear in Table L.4 (NLR GRE) and in Section L Attach L-6, the CF 
Workbook?  Are contracts already in place with vendors for the five 
contract years?  If so, please describe these relationships and the 
government's expectations going forward. 

Response: The GRE uses historical totals for the annual costs of transporting 
and dispositioning (recycling, treatment, and disposal) of ISW and 
for the amount of fees assessed and paid for all four locations 
(JSC, EF, SCTF, and EPFOL).  

It is the contractor’s obligation to obtain subcontracts with 
authorized transporters and treatment/storage/disposal/recycling 
(TSDR) facilities for all industrial solid waste (ISW) streams during 
the phase-in period (see DRD AN-01) and to maintain these 
subcontracts for the contract’s period of performance.  A TSDR 
facility must be audited and approved by the COTR before sending 
any ISW to it.  There is a list of approved TSDRs in the JES 
Technical Library that may be used until such time that the JES 
contractor audits and receives approval from the COTR for any 
additional facilities.  The JES contractor may utilize the existing 
waste profiles with approved facilities when obtaining subcontracts.   
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Question # 28: The OSHA 300 log and referenced on page L-20, please clarify if 
they are intended only for the referenced contracts and not “all” 
contracts in the past (3) years?  

(Related Question)  Please clarify L.16.5 paragraph (g).  Is the 
government requesting a list of all work performed in the past 3 
years (regardless of size or relevancy) with NAICS codes and 
points of contact, or only a list of contracts where environmental 
non-compliances or safety issues have occurred? 

Response:  The requirements to provide the data required by Section L.16.5(g), 
Demonstrated Safety and Environmental Past Performance, is for 
all contracts for the last 3 years, not for just contracts provided as 
references. 

 

Question # 29: L.16.5 paragraph (g).  OSHA and workers compensation 
information from insurance providers is not broken out by contract 
or site, is it acceptable for this information to be provided for each 
company (prime and major subs) at a corporate level? 

Response: Yes, it is acceptable for the data to be provided at the corporate 
level if no additional breakout is available. 

 

Question # 30: Letters of Commitment and Client Authorization Letters are 
required in the proposal per Section L.16.5.  Are these documents 
included in the page count? 

 (Related Question) Section L.16.5 paragraph (c) includes consent 
letters.  Do the consent letters count towards the total page count? 

 (Related Question) Section L.16.5 paragraph (d) requires that the 
Program Manager provide a signed commitment letter or notice.  
Does the commitment letter count towards the total page count? 

 (Related Question) Are copies of environmental non-compliance 
correspondence and citations and OSHA citations and insurance 
information, consent letters, Program Manager signed commitment 
letter, and Past Performance Questionnaires (per sub) considered 
a part of the 30-page limitation?   Please clarify which forms are 
part of the 30-page limitation. 
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Response: RFP Table L-1 has been amended to indicate that consent letters, 
commitment letters, Past Performance Questionnaires, and Safety 
and Environmental Past Performance information as described in 
L.16.5(g) are not included in page limitations.  All other information 
submitted to meet the requirements of L.16.5 (a), (b), (c), (d), and 
(f) is included in the page count unless specifically excluded.  

 

Question # 31: Section L.16.5(a) states “offerors, including joint ventures and 
major subcontractors (subcontracts estimated annual value greater 
than $700,000) and the proposed Program Manager, shall each 
provide information on up to three past or ongoing contracts 
(subject to the page limitation constraints).” If the proposed 
program manager is the employee of the offeror, do the past 
performance references for the program manager count towards 
the three past performance references for the offeror?  

 (Related Question)  Section L.16.5 (a) states … Offerors, including 
joint ventures and major subcontractors (subcontracts estimated 
annual value greater than $700,000) and the proposed Program 
Manager, shall each provide information on UP TO three past or 
ongoing contracts (subject to the page limitation constraints).”  
Please clarify the number of contract descriptions can be included 
in the submission, or can up to 3 contracts be provided for the 
offeror, 3 projects be provided for each subcontractor and 3 
projects be provided for the Program Manager? 

 (Related Question)  Section L.16.5 (a) states … Offerors, including 
joint ventures and major subcontractors (subcontracts estimated 
annual value greater than $700,000) and the proposed Program 
Manager, shall each provide information on UP TO three past or 
ongoing contracts (subject to the page limitation constraints).”   
Section L.16.5 (e) states that a past performance questionnaire 
must be completed and submitted for at LEAST three contracts.  
Please clarify. 

Response: The Government intends for each offeror to provide up to three (3) 
references and Past Performance Questionnaires (Attachment L-1) 
for each of the following:  the prime, the proposed Program 
Manager, each major subcontractor, and any joint venture partner, 
as applicable. In accordance with M.4(b) a neutral rating will be 
assigned for Offerors without a record of relevant past 
performance.   
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A past performance reference will count toward the three 
references for both the Offeror and the proposed Program Manager 
if the following conditions are met: 

(a) Offeror was the prime contractor on the referenced project, 
(b) Program Manager was meaningfully employed under the 

reference project, and 
(c) All portions of the Questionnaire are completed (Parts II, III, 

IV, and V) 

L.16.5(a) and L.16.5(e) have been amended to clarify the 
Government’s intent. 

Question # 32:  In regards to Attachment L-1 Past Performance Questionnaire, we 
are considering submitting a past performance project where we 
were a subcontractor to another private sector company who is 
competing for this contract.  Is it acceptable to identify the end user 
(i.e., the government client) of the contract as our COR and indicate 
that the CO was a private sector firm? 

Response: The Offeror may submit the information as proposed.  However, 

there is a possibility that the Government will not provide past 

performance information for subcontractors due to privity of 

contract. Offerors may wish to annotate any past performance 

information submitted with an explanation of exceptional 

circumstances.  The Government may use other information, as 

stated in Section M.4(b), which could include the private sector 

company to whom you were a subcontractor, to evaluate Past 

Performance.  

 

Question # 33: Can a recent CPAR review be provided instead of a Past 
Performance Survey? The CO and COTR have both retired and I 
am not sure how to locate them to complete the review. 

Response: The SLPT can download the CPAR report in the PPIRS system and 
therefore, does not require this report from the contractor.  If the 
contract is active, then you can provide a past performance survey 
to the current COTR and CO. If the contract is no longer active and  
if no survey is provided, then the SLPT will evaluate the past 
performance information that is available. 
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Question # 34: Pre-Proposal Conference Slide #64; RFP Section L.16.5 
paragraphs (a) and (e). It appears that the Government requests no 
more than 3 past performance references from the offeror, major 
subcontractors and joint venture partners based upon RFP Section 
L.16.5 (a). May the Offeror submit a past performance reference 
from a key teaming subcontractor who does not qualify as a major 
subcontractor (estimated annual value of $700k or more) and 
include that as one of our three references? Can each teaming 
partner (including those that do not meet the criteria of a major 
subcontractor) submit up to three past performances? Pre-proposal 
conference slide #64 mentions teaming partners as applicable for 
past performance reference. 

 (Related Question) Can you include past performance from a minor 
subcontractor without the subcontractor having to submit the 
financial information identified for major subcontractors? 

Response: The Government is only requesting financial and Past Performance 
information for proposed major subcontractors ($700K estimated 
annual value) however; you may choose to submit any information 
that you feel is appropriate and useful to demonstrate your ability to 
perform the work.  Please note that past performance will be 
assessed on recency and relevancy with more recent and more 
relevant receiving greater consideration in the performance 
confidence assessment.  In addition, the page limitations for the 
Past Performance Volume must also be adhered to.   

You are only required to submit financial information required by 
L.16.6 regardless of the past performance information that you 
submit. 

 

Question # 35: REF: Section L.16.5 Volume II – Past Performance Proposal (a), 
page L-18 

DISCUSSION: The annual subcontract value to be considered a 
“major subcontractor” is established as greater than $700,000. This 
represents nearly 25% of the annual total contract value, based on 
the GRE of $14.5m for 5 years, or $2.9M annually (for 21 WYEs). 
This percentage appears to be very high. Recent and current NASA 
JSC procurements have required significantly lower percentages of 
annual total contract value to be considered a major subcontractor. 
For example, EPIC (97 WYEs), with an expected total annual 
contract value of $10M, required $1M to be considered a major 
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subcontractor, or 10% of total contract value. SMAEC (~220 
WYEs), with an expected total annual contract value of $35M, 
required $1M to be considered a major subcontractor, or 3% of total 
contract value. 

QUESTION: Would the government please consider lowering the 
annual subcontract value to a percentage that is more consistent 
with the above referenced NASA JSC procurements, by 
establishing $100,000 as the annual subcontract value to be 
considered a major subcontractor? This would equate to 3.5% of 
JES total contract value. 

Response: No, the Government feels that $700,000 annual subcontract value 
is appropriate to define a major subcontractor for this procurement. 

 

Question # 36: In Section L.16.6(d), the RFP states, “All electronic file/workbook 
names included in your proposal shall begin with the appropriate 
work book acronym, hyphen, followed by the first three letters of 
your company name.”  Concerning the file naming convention for 
files in major subcontractor’s sealed package, should the file name 
have both the prime’s acronym and the sub’s acronym?  If the 
major subcontractor uses only the prime’s acronym for the files in 
their sealed package, you would have files with the same names. 

Response: Yes, any electronic files included in a major subcontractor’s sealed 
package should be labeled with the appropriate workbook acronym, 
hyphen, followed by the first three letters of the prime’s company 
name followed by the first three letters of the sub. The RFP has 
been amended to reflect this clarification. 

 

Question # 37:  In the JSC Environmental Services (JES) Pricing WebEx on Oct 
31st, you clarified that the “Rollup” (2.0, 3.0, and 4.0) columns in the 
Technical workbook are to include the WYEs for the SOW sections 
not specifically requested in the other columns (e.g., not include in 
2.8, 3.1.1 etc.).  However the formulas in the “Skill Mix Ratio” 
columns key off only the Rollup columns.  Shouldn’t these formulas 
be corrected to the sum of the cells including the rollup cells?  For 
example, the formula on the TRT3.0 tab in cell H13 is 
“=+C13/$C$28”.  Should the formula be “=Sum(C13:G13)/$C$28”? 
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Response: No, the “SOW (Roll-up)” columns in Attachment L-5’s Technical 
Resource Templates are intended to include the total resources by 
labor classification for the rolled-up level of the SOW, inclusive of 
the subordinate elements of that level of the SOW for which more 
detailed data may be requested in the columns to the right of the 
“SOW (Roll-up)” columns.  In this way, the formulas contained in 
the columns entitled “Skill mix Ratio” should not require any 
modification to calculate the skill mix ratio at the rolled-up level of 
the SOW. 

 

Question # 38: Under the Section L Cost Template Instructions, Item (h) (xiii), on p. 
L-35, Incumbency Assumptions, please clarify NASA’s desire to 
“understand your intentions…to retain the incumbents…”.  How will 
this be evaluated and/or adjusted using the current evaluation 
criteria weighting factors? 

Response:  In accordance with Section M of the RFP at M.4(c)(1), the 
Government will evaluate the reasonableness of the proposed labor 
resources and non-labor resources.  An evaluation of the 
Cost/Price factor will result in a probable cost and fee which may 
differ from the proposed cost and reflects the Government’s best 
estimate of the completion form cost and fee of any contract that is 
most likely to result from the Offeror’s proposal.  For this reason, 
the Government will consider whether or not the offeror proposes to 
hire or retain incumbent personnel and if so whether or not the 
offeror proposes to compensate them at current compensation 
levels.  For example, if an offeror proposed to hire incumbent 
personnel at current compensation levels, the Government’s most 
probable cost will include adjustments, if needed, to ensure it 
realistically estimates the actual cost most likely to result from 
successful implementation of that proposed approach of hiring 
incumbent personnel at current compensation levels.  With regard 
to the weighting factors, the relative importance of the Cost/Price 
evaluation factor among all evaluation factors is provided in Section 
M of the RFP. 

 

Question # 39:   The Excel Pricing Model (EPM) files contain named ranges that are 
reference errors.  Specifically, in Attachments 5, 6, 7 and 8, while in 
Excel, if you click on “Formulas” then on “Name Manager,” there 
are several “REF#” errors.  Are these intentionally in the files, or 
can these be removed? 
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Response: No, the Government did not intend to include named ranges in the 
formula entitled Name Manager; and, yes, these references may be 
removed. 

 

Question # 40: The labor category names are inconsistent across the workbooks.  
For example, in the Technical Workbook, the information 
Technology/Database Specialist is listed as “IT Database 
Professional,” whereas in the IDIQ Workbook it is listed as 
“IT/Database Specialist.  There is also inconsistent spacing 
between the Environmental Compliance Specialist I in those two 
workbooks.  For formula and efficiency purposes, can we update 
the labor category names so that they are consistent in each 
workbook? 

Response: Yes, you may update the labor category names to be consistent 
with Section J-3, Standard Labor Categories.  

 

Question # 41: Within the IDIQ (Attachment L-7 IDIQ Workbook) the ICST tab only 
shows a single-years’ worth of information.  Is it the intention of 
NASA for contractors to copy and paste this section below for each 
successive contract year? 

Response: Yes, when multiple versions of the same template are required, 
then submit the multiple templates inside one worksheet stacked 
vertically. For example the IDIQ Rates Development Template – 
Contractor Specific (ICST) is required for each year of the contract, 
therefore 5 vertically stacked templates will be submitted under a 
tab titled ICST under workbook IDIQ-Company Name.xls.  In this 
way, the first iteration of a template would be placed in the rows 
above subsequent iterations of the same template. (See L16.6 
Cost/Price Proposal (c), page L-23.) 

 

Question # 42: Pricing:  Will there be escalation factors allowed in the rates from 
year 1 through year 4?  

 Yes, escalation is allowed to be included. Refer to Section 
L.16.6(a)(iv).  
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Question # 43: Section L.16.7)D)(c) states “Provide up to three (3) Contract 
Name(s) and Numbers for which the accounting and property 
systems are currently in use.”  Can the offeror include newly 
awarded contracts that have been under contract for less than six 
months to describe account and property systems that are currently 
in place?  Section M.4(b) states “The Government will not consider 
performance on a newly awarded contract that has no documented 
performance history (e.g. a project that is less than six months 
under contract).”  Does this statement also apply to the requirement 
listed in Section L.16(D)(c)? 

Response: No, the Section M.4(b) statement only applies to Past Performance 
(Section L.16.5).    Offerors may include newly awarded contracts 
that have been under contract for less than six months to describe 
account and property systems that are currently in place. 

 

Question # 44: This solicitation does not include the disposal of any of the 
hazardous materials that are to be collected and managed by the 
Prime Contractor’s team. Are team-members of the prime 
contractor allowed to competitively bid (to the prime contractor) and 
be awarded the hazardous material disposal subcontracts (if is in 
the best interest of the Government (best value) generated from 
activities in this contract? Please confirm that this would not be 
considered a conflict of interest.  The prime contractor will have an 
independent on-site assessment of the TSDRFs and Transporter’s 
to ensure objectivity. 

 (Related Question) C.3.7 Emergency Spill Response:  This 
solicitation does not include the response to catastrophic spills and 
releases. Are team-members of the prime contractor allowed to 
competitively bid (to the prime contractor) and be awarded 
catastrophic response subcontracts?   Please confirm that this 
would not be considered a conflict of interest. 

Response: Both Industrial and hazardous waste disposal and the requirement 
for the contractor to have an arrangement with qualified 
subcontractor to respond to catastrophic spills/releases are 
included in the JES statement of work.   

There is insufficient information for the Government to determine if 
there is an actual Organizational Conflict of Interest (OCI). 
However, based on the information that is provided, there may be 
an OCI. The existence of OCI issues depends on the nature of the 
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teaming arrangement, the division of work between the prime and 
subcontractor(s), and how the subcontractor would be involved in 
evaluating and proposing on competitive bids. Offerors are required 
to address any potential OCI issues in their OCI Plan. See FAR 9.5 
and the NASA Guide on Organization Conflicts of Interest. (A link to 
the NASA OCI Guide is available from the acquisition website.)   

 

Question # 45: Does the government require a joint venture that has been created 
specifically for the pursuit of the JES contract to be registered in 
SAM, or will the current and complete SAM registrations of each 
individual JV partner provide the necessary government required 
information? 

Response: FAR 52.204-7 “Central Contractor Registration” requires that “a 
prospective awardee shall be registered in the Central Contractor 
Registration (CCR) database [SAM] prior to award [of the 
contract]”. If the joint venture is proposing as a prime contractor 
then it must be registered in SAM prior to award.  See FAR 4.11 
and FAR 52.204-7 for additional information. 

 

Question # 46:  Does the Contractor provide the forklift? 

Response: No, the Government anticipates providing two forklifts as identified 
in RFP Section, J-5 List of Installation Accountable Government 
Property. 

 

Question # 47: Does JSC have a vacuum trailer or pump/tank system available to 
remove storm water from secondary containment units or will the 
proposal include cost of such equipment? 

Response: Most containment structures are gravity drained by removing drain 

caps. In the case of contamination, the standard procedure is to 

pump water into drums. A pump is listed in Attachment J-5, List of 

Installation Accountable Government Property. 
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Question # 48: Are the computers provided to the JES contract leased property, 
and that is why they are not on the GFE List? 

Response: Computers are included in installation service facilities as Office 
Automation Information Technology (see G.7 NFS 1852.245-71 
Installation Accountable Government Property (JAN 2011)(Alt 
I)(Jan 2011)) rather than in RFP Section J-5 List of Installation 
Accountable Government Property. 

 

Question # 49: Are computers provided to the JES contract laptops to support 
JSC’s work from anywhere policy? 

Response: There are currently 7 laptops assigned to the environmental 
contractor; all other assigned computers are desktops. It is the 
intent of the government to convert computers for this contract to 
laptops as they are refreshed every 3 years.   

In addition, every employee at JSC (civil servant and contractor) 
can access the JSC intranet to support JSC’s work from anywhere 
policy from any computer inside JSC’s firewall or from external 
computers via Virtual Private Networking. 

 

Question # 50: If we propose additional materials not specifically listed in 
Attachment J5, will these materials be provided by the 
government? 

Response: No, the JES Contractor is responsible for the purchase, lease, or 
other means of obtaining equipment or materials not included in J-
5, List of Installation Accountable Government Property. 

 

Question # 51: REF: Section L.16.4 Volume I - Technical Acceptability Proposal, 
(d) Government Resources Estimate, Table L.4, page L-18 

DISCUSSION: Table L.4 identifies costs for vehicles necessary to 
perform the JES contract. The second bullet following Table L.4 
defines only one of those vehicles, a lift gate stake bed truck.  
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QUESTION: Will the government please identify the number and 
types of vehicles so that bidders can provide accurate cost 
estimates for these contract resources? 

Response: No, Offerors are required to determine the number, type, and cost 
of vehicles needed to perform the contract requirements based on 
their unique technical approach. 

 

Question # 52: Section L.16.4, page L-18: The proposed timeline for obtaining 
GSA leased specialty vehicles is longer that the proposed timeline 
for award and Phase-In period. How does the Government plan to 
account for these time constraints? 

 (Related Question) The Solicitation instructs that all vehicle leases 
should be procured through GSA.  In the second bullet point 
following Table L.4 the solicitation states, “Please note that the lead 
time to acquire GSA leased specialty vehicles may be a year or 
longer.”  It is also the expectation of the solicitation for the 
contractor to complete phase-in within 60 days. Does NASA 
currently anticipate the need for any additional specialty vehicles 
that cannot be transferred from the incumbent vehicle fleet? 

Response: The Government will not transfer any specialty vehicles from the 
incumbent vehicle fleet. It is the Offeror’s responsibility to determine 
the type and quantity of any specialty vehicles that may be needed. 
Given the long lead time to acquire those specialty vehicles through 
GSA, Offerors should plan on acquiring specialty vehicles via a 
private lease or other means for at least the first year.   

 

Question # 53: A number of training requirements are provided for employees 
working under this contract. Could you indicate if these are the 
requirements under the existing contract?  

Response: Some training requirements of the JES contract are different from 
the current contract.  

Question # 54: Does NASA consider the costs of training new hires or existing 
employees allowable direct costs of the contract? Does NASA 
consider costs of maintaining training certifications (continuing 
education, recertification, etc.) to be allowable direct costs of the 
contract? 
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Response: Yes.  If the employees are being trained to meet the requirements 
of the JES contract, those costs are directly related to the 
accomplishment of the contract and are allowable as are costs of 
certifications and relevant continuing education.  However, training 
and certifications must be directly related to the contract in order to 
be allowable. 

 

Question # 55: During the Phase In, which training is provided by JSC and which is 
not? 

Response: Please refer to Section C, Attachment B – Qualifications and 
training Requirements to determine which employees would need 
specific training before beginning work on Day 1 of the contract.  It 
is up to the Offeror to make that determination for each individual 
employee.   

 Go to  
http://jscpeople.jsc.nasa.gov/training/ind_dev/Requiredtraining.htm  
for a list of required training courses for individuals.  These classes 
(Hazard Communication and Employee Response, JSC Annual 
Security Review, Environmental Responsibilities for JSC 
Employees, and Basic Information Technology Security) are offered 
through SATERN, NASA’s online training system.  Employees can 
access SATERN as soon as they have a NASA computer system 
ID, which typically takes 1-2 weeks after initial submittal of an 
identity request.   

See also JPR 1700.1 Chapter 4.3, Employee Training.   In-Person 
classes are offered at JSC for multiple safety and health programs, 
including Confined Space, Lockout/Tagout, Hazard Communication 
and Emergency Response – First Responders Awareness Level, 
Lead Hazard Awareness, Blood Borne Pathogens, Ergonomics, 
Personal Protective Equipment, Respirator Fit Test and Training, 
Ionizing Radiation, Asbestos Worker Training, CPR, and First Aid.  
There must be 20 students for these classes in order to be offered 
on demand.  Otherwise, they are scheduled periodically throughout 
the year.  JSC does offer forklift and EF Flight Line training. 

JSC does not provide job specific training, such as job specific 
Hazard Communication, HAZWOPER, National Incident Command, 
RCRA, Department of Transportation, or Spill Response training.  It 
is up to the company to provide those types of training classes for 
their employees. 

http://jscpeople.jsc.nasa.gov/training/ind_dev/Requiredtraining.htm
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Question # 56: Many of the hazardous waste drums have flip-top lids that are left 
unlatched when not in use.  Is this a Texas or JSC specific 
procedure? 

Response:  No, Texas regulations and JSC policy require that all industrial solid 

waste containers be closed, including latching funnels and lids,  

except when adding or removing waste. 

 

Question # 57: Are operations at the main 90 day yard included in the historic 
work-load information on the web-site? 

Response:  Yes, information on the < 90-day waste accumulation area is 
included in the historic work-load information. 

 

Question # 58: Does the JSC Environmental Health Lab provide asbestos sample 
analysis? 

Response: Yes, the JSC Environmental Health Lab capability includes 
asbestos sample analysis. 

 

Question # 59: Is there an existing environmental records management structure 
(files, computer file structure) in place or is creating the 
infrastructure required to fulfill statement of work requirement C.2.4 
requirement? 

Response: The existing file structure is matched to the current Statement of 
Work. It is expected that the new contractor will need to create a 
new file structure to match the new Statement of Work and to meet 
the JSC records management requirements. 

 

Question # 60: Statement of work C.3.7.1 Spill Response.  Can you clarify what is 
considered an acceptable response for a spill occurring during 
other times (not 7 to 5)? 

Response: As stated in C.3.7.1 Response Times and Notifications, the 
Contractor is expected to physically respond to spills within one 
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hour if the spill occurs during non-core hours (5 pm – 7 am, M-F, 
weekends and holidays).  This applies to JSC, EF, and SCTF. 

 

Question # 61: Section C.3.9 Sampling; and Section C.4.3.1 Operate Metal 
Finishing Pretreatment System: Please advise which laboratory 
servicers are the responsibility of the offeror and which are the 
responsibility of the Government. Please provide a basis for pricing 
those items that are the responsibility of the offeror. 

Response: As indicated in C.3.9 Sampling, the only sample analyses for which 
the JES Contractor will be required to contract directly with an 
outside laboratory and provide all sample containers and delivery 
are the ones collected at the El Paso Forward Operating Location 
(EPFOL). All samples from JSC, EF and SCTF shall be delivered to 
the onsite laboratory for analysis at no cost to the Contractor.  It is 
the Contractor’s responsibility to determine the appropriate 
qualifications and best value for laboratory sampling for EPFOL, but 
those costs will be covered under the base portion of the contract. 

 

Question # 62: Statement of Work Attachment C:  The JES Program Manager 
Qualifications: 

1. Is the work experience specified for the JES Program Manager a 
requirement or a preference?   

a. If it is a requirement would 5 years of continuous experience in 
multiple, major, environmental programs for a consulting firm in 
Texas qualify? 

Response: The specified work experience in Section C, Attachment B is a 
preference. The experience should be relevant to the work 
expectations of the JES contract.   

 

Question # 63: C.3.3.2 Conduct Internal Compliance Evaluations.  Are these 
evaluations for regulatory compliance assessments only, or do they 
include NASA and Federal requirements for items such as EO 
13423 implementation, sustainable acquisition, etc. 
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Response: Internal compliance evaluations include all environmental 
requirements applicable at JSC, including Environmental 
Management Systems, recycling, pollution prevention, and 
sustainable acquisition in addition to regulatory compliance 
programs.  Offerors should review the Technical Resource Library, 
specifically, the references for C.3.3.2, which includes both a 
completed and a blank Internal Compliance Evaluation Report. 

 

Question # 64: Section C.2.15 describes that the contractor is responsible for the 
payment of all regulatory agency fees. Does NASA consider these 
fees to be limited to standard permitting, certification and other 
routine regulatory fees? 

Response: Yes. 

 

Question # 65: In the event any fines/penalties are levied by a regulatory agency 
will these costs be considered allowable direct costs? 

Response: No. It is anticipated that should there be environmental fines or 
penalties levied by a regulatory agency, they would be levied 
against the Government and paid by the Government.  

 

Question # 66: Section C.2.16 instructs the contractor to designate an alternate 
facility manager for all facilities occupied by the contractor. Is the 
alternate facility manager currently a separate position or is the role 
an “other job duty” currently performed by one or more of the 21 
WYE positions identified within the GRE? If it is an “other job duty” 
could you indicate which positions currently also perform the role of 
alternate facility manager?  

Response: The responsibility of alternate facility manager would be an “other 
duty as assigned.”  The government cannot indicate which contract 
position is currently designated as the alternate facility manager. 

Question # 67: Section C.2.18 indicates the contractor is responsible for 
coordination of trips to the EPFOL with COTR, and section C.1.2 
indicates quarterly, (4) trips per year, and two regulator[y] 
inspections per year. Does NASA currently reimburse mileage, per 
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diem and lodging for these trips? What is the assumed duration of 
each trip to EPFOL? 

Response: Yes.  NASA reimburses the contractor for any allowable travel 
expenses, such as airfare, lodging and meals.  Historically, trips to 
EPFOL are one to two days, depending on the type and amount of 
scheduled work.   

 

Question # 68: The typical workday is indicated in section C.1.3 on page C-1. At 
JSC, the typical workday is 7:30-a – 4:30p, which would lend to an 
8hr day with a 1-hr lunch break, or 8 productive hours per day. At 
the EF and SCTF locations, the typical workday is 7:00a to 3:00p 
which is only 8hrs total. Could you provide the typical productive 
hours worked at each location contemplated under the contract?  

Response: These hours were provided to give Offerors an idea of a typical 
workday at both JSC and EF.  EF tends to have earlier work hours 
than the main JSC site.  The Contractor may set its own work hours 
for its employees, as long as sufficient personnel are available to 
cover contract requirements as needed.  It is anticipated that the 
work can be accomplished with a typical 40 hour/week work 
schedule for each employee. 

 

Question # 69: Of the 21 positions identified within the GRE could you please 
indicate which are JSC positions or located elsewhere? 

Response: All personnel will have offices at the JSC 2101 NASA Parkway 
location, unless employee telecommuting plans or other proposal 
considerations provide for an alternate workplace. 

 

Question #70: This contract is for a five-year period, including options.  However, 
Sample Task Order A expires 13 months after contract start, and it 
has the majority of the work related to sustainability for the contract.  
If Sample TO A is issued at contract award, does the Government 
intend to extend Sample Task Order A until the end of the contract? 

Response: The Government intends to reissue a Sustainability Task Order 
each contract year. The TO will be adjusted to capture necessary 
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elements in response to JSC goals and is anticipated to be of a 
similar effort.    

 

Question # 71: There appears to be a discrepancy between Section C and Section 
L as to whether wetlands surveys and delineation and catastrophic 
emergency response/support are IDIQ tasks or are part of the base 
contract.  Can you please clarify.  With respect to the emergency 
response, has NASA determined a threshold that determines when 
an outside contractor is called in under an IDIQ contract for spills 
and emergency response?  If so, what is that threshold? 

Response: Section C.3.8 has a requirement for the Contractor to conduct a 
single wetland delineation survey for the entire center.  Section L 
Table L.4 includes estimated costs for performing the delineation 
and developing the report as a subcontract cost.  Additional 
wetland studies will be ordered under Section 5, IDIQ, as required.   

 Response and cleanup of routine, small spills or other releases of 
hazardous materials is covered under the base portion of the 
contract (C.3.7 Emergency Spill Response).  It is impossible to 
specifically define the point at which a spill will exceed the base 
contract response requirement (become catastrophic).  It is when 
the situation exceeds the capabilities of the JES contractor and 
available supplies and equipment.  This will be determined on a 
case-by-case basis with input from the JES Program Manager, the 
Contracting Officer, the Lead of the JSC Environmental Office and 
the JSC Incident Commander.  At that point, the JES contractor 
would arrange for the qualified subcontractor (requirement 
identified in the last paragraph of C.3.7) to respond and those 
efforts would be managed through an IDIQ Task Order.  
Historically, there has been no need to activate an arrangement 
with a qualified spill response subcontractor in the last 20 years 
(other than through a mutual aid agreement with the Houston Fire 
Department Hazmat Response Unit). 

Question # 72  Section 2.4 of the SOW states that the contractor shall bring all 
records into compliance with JSC record management 
requirements.  Is this statement intended to include all records from 
the previous contractor or just for the records generated by the 
awardee? 

Response: The Statement of Work (SOW) Section 2.4 requirements  include 
the records generated by the previous contractor and the awardee. 
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Question # 73: On page H-9, in Paragraph H.8 (a), should DRD “AN-07” be 
inserted? 

Response: Yes, the RFP has been changed to reflect this response. 

 

Question # 74: REF: Section H.10 Calibration 

DISCUSSION: The instructions in this section imply that some 
Government or contractor property may not be able to be calibrated 
in the MSCL. 

QUESTION:  Can the government identify the Government or 
contractor property that the MSCL would not be able to provide 
calibration services for, in order for bidders to define these 
additional costs? 

Response: The air analyzer identified in C.4.6.5, Continuous Emissions 
Monitoring System (CEMS) Relative Accuracy Tests and Cylinder 
Gas Audits (Sample Task Order B), and any calibration for new 
equipment that an Offeror may propose that requires calibration are 
the only known calibration services that the Measurement Systems 
and Calibration Laboratory (MSCL) would not be able to provide. 

Question # 75: H.11 Fee Rate Associated with Non-Labor Resources.  Does the 
not to exceed 1% fee for non-labor costs apply to Non-major 
subcontractors? 

Response: It is the Government’s intent to use a NTE 1% fee rate for all line 
items, other than the proposed Fully Burdened Labor Rates, for the 
purposes of negotiating IDIQ Task Orders.   

 

Question # 76: Are offerors required to submit a copy of their proposal to the 
cognizant DCAA office? 

Response: No, offerors are only required to complete the Cognizant Audit 
Office Template and submit as part of attachment L-8, Other 
Workbook. 

 

Question # 77: Is there a timeframe we can anticipate the amendment with 
responses to questions submitted 2 November? 
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Response: The JES team is working to answer all questions submitted in 
response to the RFP. However, The JES team received a large 
number of questions and will be unable to provide an exact 
response date. Please continue to monitor the JES acquisition 
webpage for the amendment with responses to questions.       

 

Question # 79 Could the contracting officer please clarify what portion of the ISW 
scope is to be covered under the CPIF vs. the IDIQ contract?  
Specifically, would the costs of materials, packaging, containers, 
labeling, transportation, various other direct costs of 
collection/disposal services, collection labor, and disposal labor fall 
under the IDIQ or the CPIF-base contract, and if apportioned to 
both which cost fall within which contract? 

Response:   All costs for managing Industrial Solid Waste (ISW) in Statement of 
Work Section C.4.5 will be covered by the CPIF-base contract.  
This includes labor, materials, subcontracts and all other costs 
attributed to the performance of Section C.4.5.  Section C.4.5 
includes management of normal or routine ISW that is generated at 
all four locations.   

However, there will be projects initiated at the Center or by other 
organizations that will generate non-routine or large volumes of 
ISW.  Cost for managing the environmental aspects of those 
projects, including managing and disposal of ISW, will be covered 
under an IDIQ Task Order.   
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Document Change Log 

Page(s) RFP Reference Change(s) Question 
Number 

SF33 Block 9 Changed Block 9, proposal due date to 
December 6, 2012. 

#8 

H-9 H.8(a) Changed section H.8 JSC 52.223-93 
Environmental and Energy Conservation 
Requirements (FEB 2011) to add a reference 
to DRD AN-07, Environmental and Energy 
Consuming Product Compliance Reports. 

# 73 

L-2, 8, 
10, 13, 
18, 21, 
22, 38 

Section L 
throughout 

Updated Section L, Table L-1 and the 
remainder of Section L to make the order 
and wording consistent with the contents of 
L.16.4, L.16.5, L.16.6, and L.16.7. 

# 13 

L-10,    
L-11 

L.16.2, Table L-1 
Proposal 
Volumes, Page 
Limitations, 
Proposal Copies, 
and Due Dates 

In Section L, Table L-1, changed proposal 
due date from November 29, 2012 to 
December 6, 2012. 
 

# 8 

L-10 L.16.2, Table L-1 
Proposal 
Volumes, Page 
Limitations, 
Proposal Copies, 
and Due Dates 

In Section L, Table L-1,  added new line in 
the table to specify that Past Performance 
Questionnaires, Consent Letters and 
Commitment Letters are not included in the 
page limit.   

# 30 

L-11 L.16.2, Table L-1 
Proposal 
Volumes, Page 
Limitations, 
Proposal Copies, 
and Due Dates 

In Section L, Table L-1, changed the number 
of copies of Volume V Model Contract 
required to be consistent with L.16.8. 

N/A 

L-19,    
L-20 

L.16.5 Volume II 
– Past 
Performance 

Modified language in L.16.5(a) and (e) to 
clarify that up to three references should be 
provided for each of the following:  Offeror, 
joint venture partners, major subcontractors, 
and the proposed Program Managers. 

# 31 

L-44 Attachment L-1, 
Past Performance 
Questionnaire 

Revised the Past Performance Questionnaire 
to change the due date from November 29, 
2012 to December 6, 2012 on transmittal 
letter. 

# 8 

L-52, 
53, 55, 
57 

Attachment L-2, 
Sample Task 
Order A - 

Removed all references to DRD EN-TO-1.  
The description of deliverables was included 
at the end of the TO and DRD EN-TO-1 was 

# 16 
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Sustainability eliminated prior to release of the RFP. 
L-24 L.16.6(d) 

Workbook 
Acronyms 

Added instructions to include subcontractor’s 
first 3 letters of the subcontractor’s company 
name following the first three letters of the 
prime’s company name for the filename for 
cost template workbooks. 

# 36 

L-39 L.16.8 Volume V 
– Model Contract, 
Table 

Added Offeror Fill-In Requirements for 
Section K. 

N/A 
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H.8 JSC 52.223-93 Environmental and Energy Conservation Requirements (FEB 
2011) 

 
(a) The Contractor shall ensure that all work performed and equipment used to 

fulfill the requirements of this contract are in compliance with all Federal, 
state, and local regulations and public laws, and the following NASA JSC 
directives: JPD 8500.1, JSC Environmental Excellence Policy;  JPR 8550.1, 
JSC Environmental Compliance Procedural Requirements;  JPR 8553.1, JSC 
Environmental Management System Manual;  JWI 8553.1, EMS 
Aspect/Impact Assessment and EMP Process; NPR 8570.1, Energy 
Efficiency and Water Conservation; and JWI 8570.1, Energy Conservation.  
The Contractor shall provide data on affirmative procurement, waste 
reduction activity, energy efficient product procurement, and ozone depleting 
substances in accordance with DRD AN-07, Environmental and Energy 
Consuming Product Compliance Reports. 

 
(b) The Government remains the owner and operator of record for all 

environmental activities conducted at NASA owned properties unless 
otherwise documented in a signed agreement between NASA and the 
Contractor.  The Contractor is advised that activities performed at JSC and 
associated facilities are subject to Federal, state and local regulatory agency 
inspections to review compliance with environmental laws and regulations.  
For on-site issues, JSC's Environmental Office will be the single point of 
contact with Federal and state regulatory agencies and their representatives 
unless otherwise directed by the Contracting Officer or the Environmental 
Office.  The Contractor shall immediately notify the JSC Environmental Office 
when contacted by external regulatory agency representatives and shall 
cooperate fully.  The Contractor shall complete, maintain, and make available 
to the Contracting Officer, JSC Environmental Office, JSC Energy Manager, 
or regulatory agency personnel all documentation relating to environmental 
compliance matters under applicable laws.  The Contractor shall immediately 
notify the JSC Environmental Office upon issuance of a Notice of Violation or 
noncompliance to the Contractor. 

 
(c) Should a Notice of Violation, Notice of Noncompliance, Notice of Deficiency, 

or similar regulatory agency notice be issued to the Government as a facility 
owner/operator on account of the actions or inactions of the Contractor or one 
of its subcontractors in the performance of work under this contract, the 
Contractor shall fully cooperate with the Government in correcting any 
problems and defending against regulatory assessment of any civil fines or 
penalties arising out of such actions or inactions.  

 
 (End of clause) 
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L.3 FAR 52.215-20 Requirements for Certified Cost or Pricing Data or Data 
other than Cost or Pricing Data (OCT 2010) – Alt. IV (OCT 2010)   

 
(a) Submission of certified cost or pricing data is not required. 

 
(b)  Provide data described below: See Provision L.16.6 Volume III – Cost/Price.  

 
(End of Provision) 

 
L.4 FAR 52.216-1 Type of Contract (APR 1984)   
  

The Government contemplates award of a Cost Plus Incentive Fee contract with 
Cost Plus Fixed Fee Indefinite-Delivery/Indefinite-Quantity (IDIQ) Task Orders 
resulting from this solicitation. The JES phase-in effort will be firm-fixed price. 
 

(End of provision) 
 
L.5 FAR 52.233-2 Service of Protest (SEP 2006)   
  

(a) Protests, as defined in section 31.101 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation, 
that are filed directly with an agency, and copies of any protests that are filed 
with the Government Accountability Office (GAO), shall be served on the 
Contracting Officer (addressed as follows) by obtaining written and dated 
acknowledgment of receipt from: 

 
NASA/Johnson Space Center 
Attn: BD/Yaranet G. Marquez 
2101 NASA Parkway 
Houston, TX 77058 
Phone: 281.244.8562 
Fax: 281.244.5331 
Email: yaranet.marquez-1@nasa.gov 

 
(b) The copy of any protest shall be received in the office designated above 

within one day of filing a protest with the GAO.  
 

(End of provision) 
 

L.6 FAR 52.252-1 Solicitation Provisions Incorporated by Reference (FEB 1998) 
  
This solicitation incorporates one or more solicitation provisions by reference, 
with the same force and effect as if they were given in full text. Upon request, the 
Contracting Officer will make their full text available. The Offeror is cautioned that 
the listed provisions may include blocks that must be completed by the Offeror 
and submitted with its quotation or offer. In lieu of submitting the full text of those 
provisions, the Offeror may identify the provision by paragraph identifier and 
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L.15 Period Covered by Procurement 
 

This solicitation covers a period of a 60-day Phase-In, and five years. For 
contracting purposes:  

 
 Anticipated Dates  Duration  Contractual Coverage  
 07/1/13 – 08/31/13  60 Days  Phase-In 
 09/01/13 – 9/30/14  13 Months  Base Period 
 10/1/14 – 9/30/16  24 Months  Option 1 
 10/01/16 – 08/30/18  23 Months  Option 2 
 

The option periods identified above will be exercised only if the requirements of 
FAR 17.207(c) Exercise of Options have first been met. The Government is not 
obligated to exercise any option if it determines for any reason that doing so is 
not in its best interest. 

 
(End of provision) 

 
L.16  Instructions for Proposal Preparation 

 
This section provides detailed instructions to Offerors to be used in the 
preparation of proposals.  It is organized as follows: 
 

Paragraph Paragraph Title 
L.16.1 Introduction 
L.16.2 Proposal Arrangement, Page Limitations, Copies, and 

Due Dates 
L.16.3 Performance Price Tradeoff (PPT) Proposal Instructions
L.16.4 Technical Acceptability (Volume I) 
L.16.5 Past Performance (Volume II) 
L.16.6 Cost/Price (Volume III) 
L.16.7 Other Proposal Requirements (Volume IV) 
L.16.8 Model Contract (Volume V) 

 
L.16.1  Introduction 

 
This acquisition is being conducted as a competitive Total Small Business 
Administration set-aside.  In providing these instructions, the Government’s 
intention is to solicit information that will permit a competitive evaluation of the 
Offeror’s proposal.  The information solicited will demonstrate the Offeror’s 
competence and capability to successfully complete the requirements specified 
in the JES Statement of Work (SOW, Section C).  Generally, the proposal shall: 
 
(a) Demonstrate understanding of the overall and specific requirements of the 

proposed contract;  
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Table L-1 
Proposal Volumes, Page Limitations, Proposal Copies, and Due Dates 

 
Date and 
Time Due 

Delivery 
Location 

Volume 
No. Title Page Limits Electronic 

Format Copies 

12/06/12 
1:30 PM 

CST 

JSC 
(See 
L.11) 

I Technical Acceptability 55 Pages  
7 Hard 
Copy, 2 

CD-
ROM 

   Management and Staffing 
Plan (AN-04) 

Included in 
Limit MS Word  

   Total Compensation Plan 
(AN-05) 

Not Included 
in Limit MS Word  

   Phase-In Plan (AN-01) Included in 
Limit MS Word  

   Safety and Health Plan 
(SA-1) 

Not Included 
in Limit MS Word  

   Technical Implementation 
Approach 

Included in 
Limit MS Word  

   Technical Workbook  Not Included 
in Limit MS Excel  

12/06/12 
1:30 PM 

CST 

JSC 
(See 
L.11) 

II Past Performance  30 Pages  

4 Hard 
Copy, 2 

CD-
ROM 

   Past Performance 
Information 

Included in 
Limit MS Word  

   
Past Performance 
Questionnaires, Consent 
Letters, and Commitment 
Letters 

Not Included 
in Limit   

   
Safety and Environmental 
Past Performance 
(L.16.5(g))  

Not Included 
in Limit   

12/06/12 
1:30 PM 

CST 

JSC 
(See 
L.11) 

III Cost/Price   

4 Hard 
Copy, 2 

CD-
ROM 

   Cost Workbooks Not Included 
in Limit MS Excel 

 
   Cost Narrative Not Included 

in Limit MS Word 

12/06/12 
1:30 PM 

CST 

JSC 
(See 
L.11) 

IV Other Proposal 
Requirements 15 pages  

2 Hard 
Copy, 2 

CD-
ROM 

   Subcontracting 
Arrangement Information 

Not Included 
in Limit MS Word  

   Organizational Conflict of 
Interest Plan (AN-08) 

Not Included 
in Limit MS Word  

   Government Property 
Management Plan (AN-10) 

Not Included 
in Limit MS Word  
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Date and 
Time Due 

Delivery 
Location 

Volume 
No. Title Page Limits Electronic 

Format Copies 

   Business Systems Included in 
Limit MS Word  

   Responsibility Information Included in 
Limit MS Word  

12/06/12 
1:30 PM 

CST 

JSC 
(See 
L.11) 

V Model Contract   

2 
Signed 
Original 
3 Hard 
Copy, 2 

CD-
ROM 

   

Sections A-J, with all fill-ins 
completed and signed SF 
33, and Section K, 
Representations and 
Certifications, with all fill-ins 
completed 

Not Included 
in Limit MS Word  

 
Offerors interested in submitting proposals shall consider the entire RFP and 
shall propose to all requirements as described in the RFP.   
 
The proposal text shall be printed double-sided on non-glossy white 8 ½ x 11-
inch paper with at least one-inch margins on all sides.  The metric standard 
format most closely approximating the described standard 8 ½ x 11-inch size 
may also be used.  Except for Volume III Cost/Price Proposal, all volumes shall 
be prepared and submitted using a non-compressed Arial font with single-spaced 
12 point text printed on both sides of the sheet. A single column format per page 
is acceptable.  Multiple column formats per page are not acceptable.  Each side 
of the sheet, tab, or divider containing proposal material will be counted as a 
page.  All pages shall be numbered sequentially within each volume.  Offerors 
shall clearly mark and identify each of the pages subject to the page limitations.  
Title pages, table of contents, cross-reference matrices, glossaries, acronym 
lists, page tabs, and section dividers that do not contain information that can be 
construed as proposal information will not be counted as part of the page 
limitations.   
 
Tables, charts, graphs, plans, figures, diagrams and schematics shall be used 
wherever practicable to depict organizations, systems, layout, and 
implementation schedules.  These displays shall contain font sizes no smaller 
than a single spaced, non-compressed Arial 12 point, be uncomplicated, legible, 
and appropriate for the subject matter.   
 
Foldout pages may only be used for large tables, charts, graphs, plans, figures, 
diagrams and schematics, not for pages of text.  Foldouts shall be counted as 
two pages against the page limitations, shall be printed on one side only, shall 
not exceed 11 x 17-inches with at least one-inch margins on all sides, and shall 
fold entirely within the volume.   
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L.16.3  Performance Price Tradeoff (PPT) Proposal Instructions 
 

This procurement will be conducted using a combination of technically 
acceptable baseline requirements (Acceptable/Unacceptable) and tradeoff of 
past performance, and cost/price.  The Government seeks to select an offeror 
whose proposal represents the best value after evaluation (see provision M.4, 
Performance Price Tradeoff (PPT) Proposal Evaluation, for evaluation 
procedures).  The baseline requirements are considered as basic government 
needs in determining technical acceptability.   
 
Technical acceptability, past performance, and cost/price other proposal 
requirements are discussed in detail below.   
 

 L.16.4  Volume I - Technical Acceptability 
 
Paragraphs (a) through (d) are the proposal instructions for the Technical 
Acceptability Volume.  The Offeror shall describe or provide the following:   

 
(a) Management Approach 

 Management and Staffing Plan 
 

The Offeror shall provide a Management and Staffing Plan that adequately 
addresses all aspects of Section J-1, DRD AN-04. 

 
 Total Compensation Plan 
 

The Offeror shall provide a Total Compensation Plan that adequately addresses 
all aspects of Section J-1, DRD AN-05. 

  
(b) Phase-In Plan 

 
The Offeror shall provide a Phase-In Plan that adequately addresses all aspects 
of Section J-1, DRD AN-01. 
 

 (c)Technical Approach  
 

 Safety and Health Plan 
 

The Offeror shall provide a Safety and Health Plan that adequately addresses all 
aspects of Section J-1, DRD SA-1. 
 

 Technical Implementation Approach 
 
Provide an overall narrative approach that addresses how you plan to 
accomplish the requirements of Section C, Statement of Work (SOW) and the 
two Sample Task Orders (Attachments L-2 and L-3) from a technical, resource 
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L16.5.  Volume II - Past Performance 

 
(a) Provide reference information from organizations and companies for which your 

company has previously performed work, in order for the Government to obtain 
appraisals of past performance. The Offeror shall provide reference information 
on up to three past or ongoing contracts for each of the following: the Offeror, 
joint venture partners, major subcontractors (subcontracts estimated annual 
value greater than $700,000) and the proposed Program Manager, if applicable 
(subject to the page limitation constraints). References with Government 
contracts are preferred, but not required. 

 
(b) Offerors shall consider the relevancy, recency and magnitude of the effort(s) as 

they relate specifically to this requirement.  Offerors are advised that the 
Government’s evaluation of submitted contracts for past performance will include 
an evaluation of how recently performance has occurred.  Only contracts with 
performance within 5 years from date of the solicitation will be considered recent.  
Offerors with no past performance experience shall so state.   

 
(c) The following information shall be provided for each past performance reference 

provided: 
 Contract number 
 Contract value/value of the work performed (as applicable) 
 Employing Agency/Company Name 
 Point of Contact (including address, telephone and fax numbers, and e-mail 

addresses) 
 If a Government Agency, include both the Contracting Officer and Contracting 

Officer’s Technical Representative points of contact 
 Contract Description 
 Place of Performance 
 Period of Performance 
 Contract Type 
 Status of Contract (current, terminated (if so, why), successfully completed 

(include completion date) 
 Consent Letters executed by each subcontractor, teaming partner, proposed 

Program Manager and/or joint venture partner, authorizing the release of past 
performance information so the Offeror can respond to such information.  See 
sample consent letter at Attachment L-4, Past Performance Consent Letter.   

 
(d) Submit information on contracts that you consider relevant in demonstrating your 

ability to perform the proposed effort.  The submission shall include rationale 
supporting your assertion of relevancy.  This submission shall clearly detail what 
portions of the Statement of Work that the prime, joint venture, subcontractors 
and proposed Program Manager are responsible for and/or proposing to do as 
they relate to the relevant contract being proposed. For a description of the 
characteristics or aspects the Government will consider in determining relevance, 
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see M.4(b), Past Performance. For the proposed Program Manager, provide a 
signed commitment letter or notice. 

 
(e) In addition to the information above (General Past Performance Narrative in 

Volume II), the Offeror, joint venture partners, major subcontractors, and the 
proposed Program Manager associated with this offer shall each submit the Past 
Performance Questionnaire (Attachment L-1) to all the reference points of 
contact required in paragraph (c), above. The Offeror is responsible for ensuring 
that each of its references, including those from its major subcontractors and 
proposed Program Manager, is directed to return two copies of each 
questionnaire directly to the Contracting Officer in a sealed envelope, by fax, or 
email to the contact identified in Section L.11 Proposal Marking and Delivery and 
that they are submitted on time. 

  
(f) You may include up to one page of introductory material about the experience 

and performance of your company and subcontractors (if applicable).  You may 
submit additional reference information on experience and past performance for 
consideration.  This shall be subject to the page limitation constraints.   

  
(g) Demonstrated Safety and Environmental Past Performance:  Offerors shall 

provide the following performance data with explanatory remarks on contracts 
performed in the last three (3) years.  Offerors shall identify the applicable North 
American Industrial Classification System (NAICS) Code for each contract and 
shall include points of contact for each contract.  If a joint venture or prime-
subcontractor relationship is proposed, the same information shall be provided 
for each company proposed.   Explanatory statements shall be included as 
appropriate.  For all work performed during the past three years, Offerors shall 
provide the following: 
(1) Environmental Compliance Data: 

• Copies of any and all environmental non-compliance correspondence 
and citations from federal, state, or local agencies or authorities with 
explanatory remarks.   

(2) Safety Data: 
• Copies of any and all OSHA citations with explanatory remarks.  
• Records of the company's OSHA recordable injuries and illnesses.  

These records shall include, for each worksite, as a minimum, 1 copy of 
each year’s OSHA logs (Forms 300 and 300A) as required by Title 29 of 
the Code of Federal Regulations, Section 1904.5(d) including the 
applicable NAICS code, the number of employees at the worksite and 
the calculated OSHA recordable frequency rate. 

• A list of all insurance carriers providing workers compensation coverage 
(or equivalent), including dates of coverage.  Include points of contact 
and phone numbers.  Offerors shall authorize the listed insurance 
carriers to respond to Government inquiries recording the Offeror’s past 
safety performance. 

• Calculations supporting the Offeror’s workers’ compensation experience 
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modifier, including the state formula used for the computation, along with 
the loss ratio for each of the past three years (where the loss ratio is 
defined as the ratio of losses to premium).  Show all figures used for 
computation. 

• A letter from the insurance carrier summarizing the Offeror’s liability and 
lawsuit history related to safety and health performance for the past 
three years including a history of changes to the experience modifier 
rate.  If an Offeror self-insures, provide and certify the same information 
(except the experience modifier rate history) with the signature of the 
responsible corporate officer or official. 
 

(h) Where an Offeror chooses to request, from a civil servant employee at JSC, that 
a past performance questionnaire be submitted on its behalf for its proposed 
Program Manager, please be advised that a Limited Communications Notice 
(LCN) has been issued in conjunction with this solicitation.  The LCN directs that 
all civil service personnel at JSC shall refrain from communicating with industry 
on any matters related to this competitive procurement; as a result, while the civil 
servants may respond to the past performance questionnaire, they will be unable 
to provide status to the Offeror, or communicate in any other fashion with the 
Offeror about that past performance request.    

 
L16.6 Volume III - Cost/Price 
 

(a) Instructions for Preparation of the Cost Proposal  
 

Certified cost and pricing data are not required; however, other than cost and 
pricing data are required. To ensure that the Government is able to perform a fair 
assessment of the proposed cost, each offeror is required to submit a cost 
proposal that is suitable for evaluation.  A cost/price volume that is suitable for 
evaluation shall:  

 
(i) Account for all resources necessary to complete requirements of this RFP 

and include all necessary supporting rationale in narrative format and 
detailed calculations (as applicable).  

(ii) Provide traceability to the technical/management proposal(s).  
(iii) Explain in detail all pricing and estimating techniques, including any 

experience factors used (unit prices, hours, quantities, etc.). All past actuals 
shall show the periods of time and costs in detail when used as a basis for 
estimating proposed costs.  

(iv) Disclose the basis of all projections, rates, ratios, percentages, and factors in 
sufficient detail to facilitate the Streamlined Procurement Team (SLPT), 
understanding and ability to mathematically verify these estimating tools. 
Discuss the rationale for any escalation proposed for each cost element, 
including the company’s escalation history for each cost element for the past 
3 years for similar projects. 
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(v) Comply with applicable Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR), NASA FAR 
Supplement (NFS), and governing statutory requirements, including Public 
Law 87-653, Truth in Negotiations Act, and Public Law 100-679, Cost 
Accounting Standards.  

(vi) Include a narrative portion that explains all judgmental elements of cost 
projections and fee policies, including any team fee sharing arrangements.  It 
shall also provide detailed supporting data showing how the proposed fee 
rate(s) were derived.  

(vii) Fill in and return all cost templates required in this RFP.  
 
The Offeror’s cost proposal shall be submitted in one volume labeled Volume III, 
Cost/Price.  
 

(b) EXCEL PRICING MODEL (EPM) FILE:  
 

Format: In order to achieve standardization, the EPM includes four (4) 
workbooks/files. Although four (4) workbooks are required, the first three (3) 
workbooks/files must be automated to the greatest extent possible:  
 
(1) Attachment L-5: Technical Workbook – (Fully Automated)  

 
(2) Attachment L-6: Completion Form Workbook – (Fully Automated)  

 
(3) Attachment L-7: IDIQ Workbook – (Fully Automated)  
 
(4) Attachment L-8: Other Workbook  
 
Attachment L-5, entitled “Technical Workbook”, shall include the following templates: 
TRST Completion Form, and TRT templates.  
 
Attachment L-6, entitled “Completion Form Workbook”, shall include the following 
templates: Labor Pricing Template, Overtime Template, Major Subcontractor Cost 
Summary Template and Prime Cost Summary Template.  
 
Attachment L-7, entitled “IDIQ Workbook”, shall include the following templates: IDIQ 
Rates Development Template-Contractor Specific, Prime Burdens Template, IDIQ 
Rates Development Team Template, Task Order Pricing Templates, and IDIQ 
Summary Cost Template.  
 
Attachment L-8, entitled “Other workbook”, shall include the following templates: 
Minor Subcontractor Pricing Template, Conversion Factor Template, Summary 
Pricing Template, Phase-in Template, Cognizant Audit Office Template, Overhead 
Template, G&A Template, Subcontractor Arrangement Information Template, and 
the Total Compensation Templates.  Automating or linking the templates in the 
fourth workbook with the first three workbooks files is not required.  
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(4) One non-fully automated workbook including all (other) templates such as 
overhead and G&A.  

 
When multiple versions of the same template are required, then submit the multiple 
templates inside one worksheet stacked vertically. For example the IDIQ Rates 
Development Template – Contractor Specific (ICST) is required for each year of the 
contract, therefore 5 vertically stacked templates will be submitted under a tab titled 
ICST under workbook IDIQ-Company Name.xls.  In this way, the first iteration of a 
template would be placed in the rows above subsequent iterations of the same 
template.  

 
(d) Workbook Acronyms  

 
All electronic file/workbook names included in your proposal shall begin with the 
appropriate workbook acronym, hyphen, followed by the first three letters of your 
company name. For example: Assume your company name is ABC Company and 
you have completed the Completion Form workbook; the file/workbook name would 
be Completion Form-ABC.xls. Files included in a major subcontractor’s sealed 
package should be labeled with the appropriate workbook acronym, hyphen, 
followed by the first three letters of the prime’s company name followed by the first 
three letters of the sub. Offerors shall use the Template acronyms below in naming 
individual worksheets/tabs within an Excel file/workbook:  
 
(1) Workbook Acronyms:  

 
Technical Workbook – All required templates associated with resources  
 
Completion Form Workbook- All required Completion Form Templates  
 
IDIQ Workbook – All required Indefinite-Delivery Indefinite-Quantity contract Type            
Templates  

 
Other Workbook– All other required Templates such as Overhead, G&A etc.  
 
(2) Template Acronyms:  

 
Technical Workbook 
TRST-CF – Technical Resources Summary Template Completion Form 
TRT – Technical Resources Template  
 
Completion Form Workbook 
LPT – Labor Pricing Template  
OPT – Overtime Pricing Template  
MSCST – Major Subcontractor Cost Summary Template  
PCST – Prime Cost Summary Template  
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ii. To which district SBA office was the application submitted?  

 
iii. If not yet approved, what steps have you taken toward achieving approval 

(include applicable dates of each activity)? 
 
(c) SBA must approve a joint venture agreement prior to the award of an 8(a) 

contract on behalf of the joint venture.  Award of the contract will only be 
made to an approved 8(a) company or 8(a) Joint Venture. 

 
B. Organizational Conflict of Interest (OCI) Plan   

 
In accordance with FAR Subpart 9.5, Organizational and Consultant Conflicts of 
Interest, the offeror and proposal will be reviewed for existing and potential OCI 
issues in relation to this procurement.  The contractor shall submit the 
information required by the OCI Plan DRD AN-08. 
 

C. Government Property Management Plan 
 
The Offeror shall submit a Government Property Management Plan that 
adequately addresses all aspects of Section J-1, DRD AN-10. 
 

D. Business Systems 
 

The Offeror shall state whether all business systems, including but not limited to, 
accounting and property which require Government acceptance or approval (as 
applicable) are currently accepted/approved by the Government. The Offeror 
shall also provide documentation showing approval status, including the 
following: 
(a) Name of system software 
(b) Length of approval, if applicable 
(c) Provide up to three (3) Contract Name(s) and Numbers for which the 

accounting and property systems are currently in use 
(d) Provide the name, number and email address of the Contracting Officer’s 

Technical Representative and Contracting Officer, for each Government 
contract cited 

(e) Provide the date of acceptance/approval for the accounting and property 
systems 

(f) Explain any existing conditional acceptances/approvals and the compliance 
status of any system(s) for which acceptance or approval is currently withheld 

 
FAR 16.301-3, Cost-Reimbursement Contracts – Limitations, requires that a 
contractor’s accounting system be adequate for determining costs applicable to 
the contract prior to the award of a cost-reimbursement contract.  The Offeror 
shall provide evidence of an adequate accounting system as determined by the 
Government for accumulating and reporting incurred costs.  An adequate 
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accounting system is not an evaluation criterion.  It is a basic contract 
requirement with a pass/fail determination.  A contact may only be awarded to 
the Offeror(s) who are determined to have an adequate accounting system. 

 
E.  Responsibility Information  

 
You may provide any additional information, not already addressed under 
another proposal volume, that you consider to be necessary to demonstrate your 
status as a responsible offeror under FAR 9.104, Standards. 
 

(End of provision) 
 

L16.8 Volume V - Model Contract 
 

Instructions for Preparation of the Model Contract  
 
Offerors shall also submit with its proposal, in Volume V the Model Contract, two 
signed Originals, three (3) hard copies and two (2) electronic copies of the model 
contract per the instructions below.  

 

Contract Section  
Areas of Model Contract Offerors are Required to 
Complete 

Section A  Complete, sign, and date the SF 33  
Section B B.3 – Fill-in phase-in FFP 
 B.3 – Fill-in Estimated/Target Cost, Target Cost and Incentive 

Fee for Base Period 
 B.6 (A) - Complete the table of Fully Burdened Labor Rates 

without Fee for Cost reimbursable TO/DOs 
  B.6 (D) - Fill-in fixed fee rates for TO/DOs 
Section C Statement of Work – Add descriptive language in the 

appropriate SOW paragraph or contract clause for any 
innovations proposed. 

Section D None 
Section E None 
Section F F.4 Options 1 & 2, Estimated/Target Cost, Target CIF and PIF, 

Estimated Cost and Fee Totals 
Section G G.3 (c) (1) insert cognizant DCAA office, Supervisory Auditor, 

Address, Telephone Number, Fax Number, and E-Mail Address
Section H H.5 (c) Insert key personnel only 
Section I None 
Section J Offerors will submit the required documents 
Section K Offerors complete Section K 
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ATTACHMENT L-1 PAST PERFORMANCE QUESTIONNAIRE 
 
Complete one set of letters and forms for each Past Performance reference.  Additional 
space or blank sheets may be added to answer any question. 
 
Transmittal Letter to Accompany Present/Past Performance Questionnaire 
 
FROM: [Insert Company Official Name, Title, and Company Name] 
 
SUBJECT: Present/Past Performance Questionnaire for Contract(s): 
 
We, [Insert Company Name], are currently responding to the NASA Johnson Space 
Center’s (JSC’s) Request for Proposal (RFP) for the JSC Environmental Services (JES) 
contract.  This RFP requires offerors to identify customers and solicit their response 
regarding our performance and/or the performance of the proposed Program Manager 
identified. 
 
We are providing current and past performance data to NASA/JSC relating to our 
performance or the /the performance of our proposed Program Manager on contract 
[Insert contract name/number and/or the proposed Program Manager name]. 
 
The JES RFP instructs that we provide customers with the attached questionnaire.  
Please complete the questionnaire and submit it so that it arrives by December 6, 2012 
directly to the JSC Contract Specialist.  The requested data may be submitted via fax, 
mail, or email to:  
 

NASA Johnson Space Center 
ATTN: BJ5/Shine Lin 
2101 NASA Parkway 
Houston, TX  77058 
Phone: 281-483-0014 
Fax: 281-244-6349 
Email: shine.lin@nasa.gov  

 
The information contained in the completed Past Performance Questionnaire is 
considered sensitive and cannot be released to us, the Offeror.  Please direct any 
questions about the acquisition or the attached questionnaire to the JSC point of contact 
identified above.  Thank you for your timely assistance. 
 
Sincerely, 
[Insert Company Official Name and Title] 
 
 
 
 
 



NNJ12443042R  JSC Environmental Services Section L 

L-52 

 Table 0:  Sustainability Deliverables  
The Contractor shall submit the following deliverables as required at the end of this 
attachment. 
 
Title Due Date 
Task Order Implementation Plan Sep 20, 2013 

 
Sub-Task 1:  Sustainability Program, Plan and Assessment 

 
The Contractor shall participate in the JSC Sustainability Lead Working Group.  The 
Contractor shall participate fully in the update and implementation of JSC’s 
Sustainability Engagement Strategy.  The Contractor shall coordinate with the Center 
Sustainability Officer (CSO) or designee to update the JSC Sustainability Progress 
Report.   
 
The Contractor shall assist the CSO in tracking JSC’s progress toward meeting its goals 
relative to the NASA Strategic Sustainability Performance Plan (SSPP).  The Contractor 
shall identify barriers to meeting SSPP goals.  The Contractor shall collaborate with the 
Environmental Office and make specific recommendations improve metrics collection 
for SSPP goals, communication, awareness, and ultimately, behavior change in JSC 
employees.  The Contractor shall prepare the JSC Sustainability Program Assessment 
Report 
 
The Contractor shall provide guidance to JSC organizations for incorporating 
sustainability practices into their operations.   Assistance may be in the form of 
presentations, training, market research, demonstrations, or other similar techniques. 
 
The Contractor shall assist the CSO and Environmental Office in developing a set of 
sustainability metrics that assess the environmental, economic, and sustainable 
progress of JSC.  This will be a collaborative effort, and the Contractor shall research 
potential metrics and conduct benchmark investigations of similar facilities. 
 
 Performance Standards 
The Contractor participates and provides value to the entirety of the JSC Sustainability 
effort, including planning, research, providing solutions, designing metrics, etc.  
Deliverables meet the requirements of Section C.2.5.   
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Table 1:  Sustainability Deliverables  
The Contractor shall submit the following deliverables as required at the end of this 
attachment. 
 
Sub-
Task 

Title Due Date 

1 JSC Sustainability Progress Report Jan 31, 2014 
1 Sustainability Program Assessment 

Report 
July 31, 2014 

1 Sustainability Metrics Sep 1, 2014 
 

Sub-Task 2:  Industrial Solid Waste (ISW) Minimization and Pollution 
Prevention Opportunity Assessment (PPOA) 

 
The Contractor shall review the existing JSC, EF, and EPFOL P2 Plans, the annual 
waste summaries, the Waste Reduction Policy Act (WRPA) Progress Reports, and 
other related data; analyze the data for potential improvement focus areas and trends; 
and recommend a PPOA, implementation process and milestones for JSC, EF/SCTF 
and EPFOL (3 PPOAs total) to implement in Contract Year (CY) 2.  Based on this 
analysis, develop recommended changes, if any, to the existing P2 Plans. 
 
NOTE:  The compilation of data and submittal of P2 Plans, WRPA Progress Reports 
and annual waste summaries are covered under the performance-based Statement of 
Work (SOW) Section C.3.5 and C.4.5.1. 
 
The Contractor shall monitor progress towards meeting P2 goals.  The Contractor shall 
analyze the data mentioned above in order to identify barriers and areas that need 
improvement and submit an ISW Minimization Analysis Report.  The Contractor shall 
collaborate with the Environmental Office to develop goals and recommend actions for 
improvement.    
 

Performance Standards 
Recommended PPOAs are relevant to JSC operations and take into account all waste 
data.  Deliverables meet the requirements of Section C.2.5. 
 
 Table 2:  ISW Deliverables  
The Contractor shall submit the following deliverables as required at the end of this 
attachment. 
 
Sub-Task Title Due Date 

2 PPOA Recommendation Jul 31, 2014 
2 ISW Minimization Analysis Report Jul 31, 2014 
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separate demonstrations each with a separate vendor.  Collect participant feedback to 
improve demonstrations and determine future demonstration subjects. 
 
(iii) Conduct meetings with three different organizations or contractors who submitted 
data for the annual NETS Sustainable Acquisition Report (C.3.5.2) for an informal 
review of the previous year’s sustainable acquisition data that was turned in to: 

• Evaluate and identify any issues with data quality 
• Discover specific barriers to purchasing environmentally preferred alternatives 
• Evaluate organizational understanding about sustainable acquisition requirements, 

reporting requirements, and the waiver process 
• Review activities that the organization performs to evaluate areas that are not 

being reported and/or that need some market research to find alternatives 
• Identify good practices or areas where requirements are being met 

 
The Contractor shall submit an Organizational Review Summary for each review 
conducted.   
 
(iv) The Contractor shall conduct a review of one JSC contractor’s (not the JES 
Contractor) internal waiver process.  
 
The Contractor shall submit the Contractor Waiver Process Review Summary and 
Request for Follow-up. 
 
The Contractor shall review the response provided from the reviewed Contractor for 
effectiveness and conduct a spot check to ensure that actions have been completed. 
 
(v) The contractor shall develop and submit a SAP Awareness Handout. 
 
 Performance Standards 
Barriers and problems are thoroughly investigated and solutions are provided that 
correspond to the NASA SSPP.  Demonstrations are relevant and useful to JSC 
organizations.  Deliverables meet the requirements of Section C.2.5. 
 
 Table 3:  Sustainable Acquisition Deliverables  
The Contractor shall submit the following deliverables as required at the end of this 
attachment. 
 
Sub-Task Title Due Date 
3.a Sustainable Acquisition Program 

Assessment 
Jul 31, 2014 

3.b(i) Waiver Form Update Mar 1, 2014 
3.b(iii) Organizational Review Summary Dec 15, 2013, Mar 15, 2014, Jun 

15, 2014  
3.b(iv) Contractor Waiver Process Review 

Summary and Request for Follow-
up 

10 working days after the initial 
review 
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recycling requirements, or prohibiting trash dumping in a recycling roll off.  Expect ~20-
50 sign replacements. 
 

4.f  Brochure 
The Contractor shall review and update the JSC Recycling Brochure with the assistance 
of the JSC Graphics Office.  The Contractor shall prepare the graphics request form and 
submit to the JSC Graphics Department to produce new brochures. 
 

Performance Standards 
Barriers and problems are thoroughly investigated and solutions are provided that 
correspond to the NASA SSPP.  Recycling campaign is effective and generates positive 
results.  Signs are durable and provide required information.  Deliverables meet the 
requirements of Section C.2.5. 
 
 Table 4:  Recycling Deliverables  
The Contractor shall submit the following deliverables as required at the end of this 
attachment. 
 

 
 
  

Section Title Due Date 
4.b Recycling Program Assessment Jul 31, 2014 
4.c Recycling Opportunity Report Jun 1, 2014 
4.d Recycling Campaign Proposal Feb 1, 2014 
4.d Recycling Campaign Analysis Sep 30, 2014 
4.f Recycling Brochure Sep 1, 2014 
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